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Mechanics' Hall stands on the northeast corner of the intersection
of Congress and Casco Streets, in the commercial heart of downtown Port-
land. I% fronts southeast on Congress Street. It was designed by Thomas
J. Spgg/%@, Portland's first native architect, for the Maine Charitable
Mechanic Association. Construction began in 1857; the building was dedi-
cated on February 23, 1859.

Mechanics' Hall has three stories but is quite tall because the floor
to ceiling height of the second floor is 33 feet. The building is rectan-
gular, about 80 feet long and 52 feet wide. Built of brick and granite,
which came from Biddeford, Maine, the Hall is an imposing structure of
the Ita]iepé{e stytet .

The exterior of Mechanics' Hall has not been.greatly altered since
1859. The two story granite facade wraps around the left side of the
building for a short distance. The facade is divided vertically-into
three sections; the middle section projects slightly. “A stringcourse
divides the facade horizontally at the level of the second floor. Above
are three tall arched windows, one in each section. The surrounds of
these windows and the corners of the facade are executed in vermiculated
cut granite. The rest of the facade is of smooth, regular coursed ashlar.
The keystones of the three windows are carved w1th the heads of Vulcan
and of Archimedes and the arm of Labor. Originally, on the level of the
first floor; the'center section contained a double entrance door, and the
two side sections had~store windows behind granite colonades. These two
store' fronts-have been-variously altered, and today are replaced with
modern display windows and doorways. The facade originally had a solid
balustrade above a modillioned gran1te ¢ornice.’ The 'balustrade’wasire=
moved by 1876. The cornice remains today; it continues around the ent1re
building. - ' - AL T z2aTTn

' Because Mechanics® Hall sits on the corher of a block, the left: T
(southwest) side of the building is also important visually. Behind
the short section where the facade wraps around, it is divided into
four sections. On the second floor level each section-¢ontains'an arched
window of the same size as those in the front facade. Originally, on the
first floor level, there was an entrance door in the thirdosection: from
the front; the other sections contained windows. This door was later
eliminated and the windows modernized. The brick of this side is dressed
up with a full-length' ¢ontinuation of the granite stringcourse of the:
facade and a vermiculated granite corner in the rear. The voussoirs of
the window arches are also granite. \ o ' A

The brick rear and right side of Methanics' Hall were'originally

flanked by other buildings. There are three arched windows in the rear
three of the four sections of the right side. There is no granite trim.
In the rear, the granite cornice continues up the roofline.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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The gable roof of Mechanics' Hall is hipped in the front, sloping back
from the facade. It is surmounted by the wooden monitor of the third floor.
The monitor has oval and round windows in the front, and arched windows
along the sides, all separated by flat pilasters. The back of the monitor
is a rectangular brick wall.

Mechanics' Hall presents an imposing and exceptionally unified exterior.
The changes to the original appearance of the first floor store fronts do
look incongruous, but do not destroy the total impression of the facade.

The exterior of Mechanics' Hall was designed to reflect the original
use to which the interior was put. The main entrance opened onto a 14 foot
wide hall which ran through the building to meet a smaller entrance way
from Casco Street. There was a room across the rear of the building, 52
feet wide and 18 feet deep, which housed the ijggry of the Assoication.
The ceiling was painted in fresco. To either side of the main hall was a
stgfe, leased for commercial use by the Association. In 1886 one of the
stores was extended to include the Tibrary room and the Casco Street en-
trance. A wide stairway led from the entrance hall to the second floor
which contained the Hall of the Mechanic Association, 66 feet long, 52
feet wide and 33 feet in height. The Hall had a Tevel of balconies sup-
ported on iron brackets. The library was moved up into the Hall from the
first floor in 1886, and still occupies this room. The third floor was
divided into cooking rooms and a dining hall; it was finished in immitation
oak. From the music gallery at the northern end, one had an extensive view
of Portland harbor.

In 1890, the second floor Hall was renovated according to plans drawn
by John Calvin Ste¥ens I, a leading Portland architect. The second floor
was divided into two floors. The library, a drawing room, and offices
occupied the lower floor. The upper floor was unused. Since then, Mechanics'
Hall has been further modernized: the entrance hall has been changed, one
of the stores expanded and updated and the upper level of the second floor
is used today as a photographic studio. The original third floor has not
been used for some time and remains largely in its original condition.
Mechanics' Hall has received excellent and sympathic care from the Maine
Charitable Mechanic Association.
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The Maine Charitable Mechanic Assoication was incorporated in 1815
by a group of Portland citizens engaged in the "Mechanic Arts" to give
charitable and educational aid to the members of these professions. The
Association sponsored ‘exhibitions and trade fairs in 1826, 1838, 1854
and 1859. Over the years it has established an excellent ]1brary, spon-
sored public lectures on appropriate subjects and run a free drawing
school, all of which it continues to do. The Association is one @of the
oldest organizations in Maine and remains an active institution today.
Mechanics' Hall was the first permanent home of the Maine Chayftable
Mechanic Association. It has continuously served and still serves well
as the Association's headquarters.

Thomas J. Sparrow (1805-1870), the architect of Mechan1cs Hall,
was a member of the Association as were all the.craftsmen who worked on
the building. Sparrow was the first man borp.in, Portland, to. practice, _
architecture there. He was at first a joiner; by 1841 he was listed in
the Portland Directory as an-architect. Sparrow desigped. the Cumberland
County Jail, 1858, which was torn down in 1966. Only three of his com-
missions are known to survive today: a large brick row house on-Pine, .
Street built in 1849, the first known example of the Italianate style
in Portland; a granite obelisk in the Western Cemetary marking the grave
of Henry Jackson, 1851 and Mechanics' Hall, 1859.

- -Mechanies' Hall is.the finest known work of Thomas J. Sparrow.
Extremely visible on its corner lot, Mechanics' Hall is one of the most
handsome bua]dlngs on Congress Street. The total impression of the
bu11d1ng js one of great solidity. It has a massiveness which is not
oppressing. The detail is executed in such a way as to give a warmth
and: richness to the facades. The cornice, the vermiculated granite
trim of the windows, the corner posts, and the modulation of the wall
surfaces temper the scale of the building. The tall arched windows
lighten the mass. Considered elegant when it was built, it remains so
today. Mechanics' Hall is a vital part of downtown Portland.
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